Public Document Pack

NOTICE

4 .

S !

> Ve

S 2 &

S0 s

§ e ‘

OF - R

z | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

MEETING

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

MONDAY, 7TH JANUARY, 2019
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL WINDSOR

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS MALCOLM ALEXANDER (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, JOHN BOWDEN, WISDOM DA COSTA, EILEEN QUICK,
SAMANTHA RAYNER, SHAMSUL SHELIM AND EDWARD WILSON

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS NATASHA AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER,
HASHIM BHATTI, GARY MUIR, NICOLA PRYER, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS
AND JOHN STORY

Karen Shepherd — Service Lead, Governance - Issued: 21 December 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796251

Accessibility - Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting are requested to notify the clerk in advance of
any accessibility issues

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings —In line with the council’'s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be
audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage
will be available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording
will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting.

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning applications
received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by
accessing the Planning Applications Public Access Module at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring reports.

11-50

51-54







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS
Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.

A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting. In order to avoid any accusations of taking
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area
or, if they wish, leave the room. If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in
carrying out member duties or election expenses.

e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been
fully discharged.

o Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.

e Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: 1 declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx.
As soon as we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Prejudicial Interests

Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.

A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations in the item: 1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as
we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the public area for
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Personal interests

Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a
Member when making a decision on council matters.

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, | will take part in the discussion and vote on the
matter. 6



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors Malcolm Alexander (Chairman), Phillip Bicknell (Vice-
Chairman),  Michael Airey,  John Bowden, @ Wisdom Da Costa,  Eileen Quick,
Samantha Rayner and Edward Wilson

Officers: Ashley Smith, Wendy Binmore and Sian Saadeh

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Edward Wilson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Alexander — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as several members of his
family either attended or worked in some of the schools listed in the report. He
confirmed he attended Panel with an open mind.

Clir Bicknell — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as his son was the interim
deputy head teach of Holyport College and Eton College sponsored Holyport College.
He added his youngest son was a pupil at Trevelyan Middle School which was listed
in the report for item 1. Councillor Bicknell confirmed he attended Panel with an open
mind.

Clir Bowden — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as he is a relative of a former
employee of the Planning Consultants used by the applicant. He confirmed that he
had never discussed the item with his relative and that he attended Panel with an
open mind.

Clir E. Wilson — Declared a personal interest in item 1 as his wife was employed at
Holyport College which had a connection with Eton College. He confirmed he attended
Panel with an open mind.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2018
be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

18/02033*  Eton College: Construction of a new school sports centre comprising a
9-court sports hall capable of offering multipurpose indoor sports, x8
squash courts, general fitness spaces, an athlete development
programme space including a sprint track, dojo space, physio spaces,
classrooms and offices for PE staff and students, a triple height
combing wall space, rifle range and associated plant, storage, WC
and changing facilities. Construction of a new Eton Sports and
Aquatics Centre comprising a 25m pool with movable floor suitable for
swimming, water polo and teaching use, a 4-court sports hall capable
of offering multi-purpose indoor sports and exam use, changing
facilities, a spectator area at first floor level which also provides a



meet-up space and refreshment point for post-match use, associated
plant and storage provision, associated car and coach parking and
new access track off Slough Road. Refurbishment and extension of
the rackets courts building to provide a new clubroom and changing
facilities. Refurbishment of fives courts, a new printmaking pavilion to
house historic printing presses adjacent to Caxton Schools, following
demolition of the existing buildings comprising the gymnasium, indoor
swimming pool and the outdoor swimming pool complex (Amended
Plans) at College Eton College, Slough Road, Eton, Windsor SL4 6DJ.

The Panel debated the item, and the recommendation put forward by
officers. Whilst members felt that the officer had produced a high
quality report considering the key matters well, it became clear
through the debate that members felt that greater weight should be
assigned to some of the very special circumstances advanced by the
applicant.

In their recommendation officers had considered that the following
weight should in their opinion be assigned to the very special of the
case circumstances:

Very Special Circumstances Weight afforded
Need for College to upgrade and improve their | Significant
existing indoor sports facilities to enable pupils to
participate in full curriculum of sports, to ensure
adequate recreation space for pupils and to
ensure continued success of College in attracting
pupils

Community benefits in proposed use of facilities | Significant
by local schools and Eton/Eton Wick residents
Lack of alternative sites available within relevant | Limited
area that could accommodate proposed
development

High quality design scheme Limited
Improvement in surface water drainage and flood | Limited
plain storage capacity
Ecological enhancements Limited

After debating the case, Members considered that greater weight
should be afforded to the Very Special Circumstances case in the
following areas:

1. Need for college to upgrade and improve their existing indoor
sports facilities to enable pupils to participate in full curriculum
of sports, to ensure adequate recreation space for pupils and
to ensure continued success of College in attracting pupils and
delivering for their needs — Weight afforded should be
increased to Very Significant.

2. Community benefits from the proposed use of facilities by local
schools and local residents — Weight afforded should be
changed to Very Significant (This will be secured with a
Legal Agreement).

3. High Quality of the Design of the scheme — Weight afforded
should be increased to moderate. Members noted the very

8



positive comments with regards the design from Historic
England.

4. Members noted that there would be an increase in
employment opportunities and felt that should be added to the
Very Special Circumstances case even if the weight afforded
could only be set at very limited.

Once these issues had been identified, members further discussed the
item and the benefits and harm arising as a result of the proposal. A
motion to approve the development was advanced on the basis of the
above revised very special circumstances weightings. In advancing
approval members considered that the balance had now tilted in
favour of approval and the very special circumstances now clearly
outweighed the harm.

— A vote then took place and the Panel voted UNANIMOUSLY TO
AUTHORISE THE GRANTING OF PLANNING PERMISSION
(contrary to the Head of Planning’s recommendation). The grant
of planning permission was delegated to the Head of Planning
subject to a legal agreement be agreed that secured a suitable
level of community use of the facilities, relevant conditions and
referral to the Secretary of State.

(The Panel was addressed by Dr Roz Rivas of the Eton and Eton
Wick Neighbourhood Plan Group in support of the application and
Simon Henderson the Head Master of Eton College and Katherine
Russell the Head Teacher at Eton Porny School in favour of the
application).

18/02637 Mr Collett: Outline application for access, layout and scale to be
considered at this stage with all matters to be reserved for the
construction of 2 x two bedroom dwellings, 14 apartments, associated
parking and new vehicular access following the demolition of 9-11
Imperial Road at 9-11 Imperial Road, Windsor.

THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY delegate to the Head of
Planning to:

1. Secure an appropriate level of affordable housing following
negotiations with the applicant and then to APPROVE planning
permission subject to a legal agreement to secure the agreed
affordable housing contribution and subject to the conditions set
out in Section 13 of the Main Report. Or;

2. Refuse planning permission for the lack of affordable housing if no
agreement has been reached on an appropriate level of provision
by 31 January 2019.

(The Panel was addressed by Glenn Batchelar in objection).

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 8.20 pm

CHAIRMAN. ... ...,



10



Agenda Item 4
RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Urban Panel

7th January 2019

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 18/03027/FULL Recommendation REF Page No.
Location: Windsor Physiotherapy Essex Lodge 69 Osborne Road Windsor SL4 3EQ
Proposal: Construction of new building comprising 11 x two bedroom and 3 x one bedroom flats with associated parking,
alteration to existing access and new bin enclosure.
Applicant:  Mr Howells Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 17 January 2019
Item No. 2 Application No. 18/03138/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No.
Location: Land To Rear of 54 To 60 Clewer Hill Road Windsor
Proposal: Partial demolition of garages, and change of use and conversion of 6 garages and 2 storage buildings to a
single storey dwelling, with parking, access and amenity space.
Applicant:  Mr Gray Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 9 January 2019

AGLIST

11



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

7 January 2019 ltem: 1
Application 18/03027/FULL

No.:

Location: Windsor Physiotherapy Essex Lodge 69 Osborne Road Windsor SL4 3EQ

Proposal: Construction of new building comprising 11 x two bedroom and 3 x one bedroom flats

with associated parking, alteration to existing access and new bin enclosure.
Applicant: Mr Howells
Agent: Not Applicable
Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Park Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Briony Franklin on 01628 796007 or at
briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal seeks planning permission to demolish an existing Edwardian building close to
Windsor town centre and replace it with a part 3, part 4 storey building comprising 14
apartments with associated car parking. The current scheme follows previous applications to
build 14 flats on the site which have been refused and dismissed on appeal. It is not considered
that the current scheme has sufficiently addressed the previous concerns and the application is
recommended for refusal for the reasons set out below.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for the following summarised
reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 13 of this report):

1. | The proposed development would appear cramped and unduly prominent in the
street scene to the detriment of the spacious character and appearance of the site
itself and the locality in general and the setting of the adjacent Conservation Area.

2. | The proposed development would appear overbearing and unduly prominent when
viewed from Heron Lodge to the detriment of their living conditions.

3. | The proposal would result in future pressure to remove or reduce the adjacent Lime
tree and insufficient space has been provided to secure any meaningful
planting/landscaping.

4. | The proposal has failed to deliver any affordable housing in accordance with
paragraph 64 of the NPPF.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application; such decisions can only be made by the Panel.

o At the request of Councillor Airey given concern regarding harmful impact on local area,
particularly with regard to the proximity to the conservation area and concerns of over
development.

13



3.1

3.2

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is a triangular shaped, prominent corner plot, located at the junction of
Osborne Road and Bolton Avenue, close to Windsor town centre. The site currently comprises a
detached Edwardian, two storey building which is in use as a physiotherapist, Pilates studio and
medical offices. There is also one residential unit on the site. The site is enclosed by a close
boarded fence and is completely covered in hard surfacing with no trees within the site. There are
trees on the adjacent highway land.

The site is sits higher than Heron Lodge, a three storey flatted development to the south east of
the site and lies opposite detached dwellings in Bolton Avenue. Larger scale flatted
developments, Dene House and Knights Place lie to the west of the site on the
gyratory/roundabout. The two northern corners of the roundabout including Kings House, a
similar Edwardian building, are smaller in scale and the application site is considered to have
some gateway qualities being located on a main junction into the town centre.

KEY CONSTRAINTS

The site lies close to the Inner Windsor Conservation Area which runs along the opposite side of
Osborne Road to the north of the site. The site lies within the ‘leafy residential suburbs’ character
area as designated in the Townscape Assessment.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Planning permission is sought to demolish the existing building and erect a part 3, part 4 storey
building comprising a total of 14 apartments (11 x 2 bed and 3 x 1 bed) with associated parking
for 20 vehicles, including under croft parking. Cycle and bin storage are proposed to be provided
and the existing vehicular access onto Osborne Road is to be closed and the existing vehicular
access onto Bolton Avenue is to be altered.

The building has been designed to try and replicate the Edwardian building it replaces and
incorporates timber detailing and rendering above brickwork at ground and first floor level. The
building incorporates a number of balconies, dormer windows and roof terraces. The height of the
building measures 11.6m adjacent to Heron Lodge rising to 13.2m closer to the road junction at
Bolton Avenue and Osborne Road.

The table below sets out the relevant planning history for the site:

Reference Description Decision
02/82395/COU Change of use from residential to | Permitted 25.10.02
medical consultancy (Class D1) with
ancillary residential use.
11/01187/FULL Redevelopment and change of use | Withdrawn
of existing site and building to a four
storey apartment building comprising
14 residential apartments.
11/02309/FULL Redevelopment and change of use | Refused and dismissed on
of existing site and building to a four | appeal 7.08.12

storey apartment building comprising
14 residential apartments.
13/01689/FULL Redevelopment of existing site to | Refused and dismissed on
provide 14  apartments  with | appeal 21.3.14
associated basement parking and
access.

The previous application (reference number 13/01698/FULL) was refused for the following
reason:

‘The proposed building by reason of its size, bulk and height situated in close proximity to the
road fails to take account of and harms the character and appearance of the area, including the

14



7.1

setting of the adjacent conservation area. The proposal therefore fails to comply with Policies
DG1, H10, H11 and CA2 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan
Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003 and the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).’

In dismissing the appeal the Inspector concluded (paragraph 19):

‘The proposed development would not provide a satisfactory design, in terms of both its layout
and massing, and resultant impacts on landscaping. While |1 have no objections to the proposed
scale, its design as a whole would not successfully address its context, including the setting of
the nearby Conservation Area, and as such, would not represent sustainable development within
the definition of the Framework. It would also fail to conform with the Council’s Local Plan.’
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1, H10,H11
of area
Highways P4 AND T5
Impact on Conservation Area CA2
Affordable Housing H3
Trees N6
Community Facilities CF1

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018)

Section 2 — Achieving sustainable development

Section 4- Decision—making

Section 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

Section 9- Promoting Sustainable Transport

Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Section 16- Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy

Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3

of area

Sustainable Transport IF2
Affordable Housing and Housing Density HO3, HO5
Historic Environment HE1
Tress, Woodlands and Hedgerows NR2
Infrastructure and Developer Contribution IF1
Community Facilities IF7

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough

15


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.2

7.3

Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:
e RBWM Townscape Assessment
e RBWM Parking Strategy
e Affordable Housing Planning Guidance

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

41 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted 2 site notices advertising the application on the two road frontages
(2?611%0/18 and 9/11/18) and the application was advertised in the Local Press on 25" October

21 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered

1. | Excessive for the size of plot and out of keeping with general character | Paragraphs 9.2-
of the area 9.12

2. | Design fails to fully consider the conservation area opposite. 9.2-9.12

3. | Proposal would result in more traffic and parking problems 9.21-9.25

4. | Building comes close to site boundaries adding to oppressive feel. 9.13-9.20

5. | Lack of car parking provided. 9.21-9.25

6. | Excessive building height. 9.2-9.12

7. | The development should be assessed in relation to Heron Lodge and 9.2-9.12
not Dene House.

8. | Flats change the character of an area and increase the burden on local | 9.2-9.12
services

9. | Essex Lodge is a non-listed heritage building providing a visual 9.2-9.12
gateway into Windsor and adjoins the inner conservation zone.

10 | Gross over-development of the site. 9.2-9.12

11 | Scale of development will dominate the site and the surrounding 9.2-9.12
buildings.

12 | Impact on the street scene — bulk/mass/scale 9.2-9.12

13 | Impact on a local heritage building 9.2-9.12

14 | Damage to the amenity of neighbours from ingress and egress of cars 9.13-9.20
and overlooking.

16


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

15 | Insufficient space for meaningful planting. 9.26-9.29

16 | Together with Kings House the building forms a pair of buildings which | 9.2-9.12
act as local landmarks.

17 | The building built in 1897 is of historical significance having been built 9.2-9.12
for Queen Victoria’s dressmaker.

18 | The Bolton’s and Osborne Road are characterised as a green and leafy | 9.2- 9.12
residential suburb in the RBWM Townscape Assessment.

19 | The owners have removed all the trees. 9.26-9.29

20 | Osborne Road and Bolton Avenue are categorised as ‘Green Routes’ 9.2-9.12
in the emerging Neighbourhood Plan.

21 | Contrary to emerging policy SP3 and policy DG1, H11 and policies in 9.29.12
the emerging Windsor Neighbourhood Plan.

22 | Impact on residents of number 2A Bolton Ave - lights from departing 9.13-9.20
cars will shine into ground floor rooms

23 | Overlooking of residents in Bolton Ave 9.13-9.20

24 | Driveway entrance is to be moved close to the road junction and close | 9.21-9.25
to the large Lime tree which will restrict visibility.

25 | Concern for pedestrian safety. 9.21-9.25

26 | No visitor parking proposed 9.21-9.25

27 | No turning space proposed which will lead to people reversing out into | 9.21-9.25

. Bolton Avenue.

28 | Existing building should be preserved 9.2-9.12

29 | The superficial detailing in the mock-Tudor style characteristic of these | 9.2-9.12
houses offers no real amelioration.

30 | Impact on view and sunlight to Heron Lodge 9.13-9.20

31 | Increase in noise, congestion and pollution 9.13-9.20

32 | Height of building is out of character for the area and would have 9.13-9.20
considerable impact on light for local residents.

33 | Loss of commercial/professional facilities 9.33

34 | Size, bulk and mass of building is overwhelming for the site. 9.2-9.12

35 | Loss of privacy to The Coach House — windows and garden will be 9.13-9.20
overlooked.

36 | Invasion of privacy to number 67 Heron Lodge 9.13-9.20

37 | Detrimental impact on Heron Lodge 9.13-9.20

38 | No building should be permitted in front of the building lines in Osborne | 9.2-9.12
Road and Bolton Ave.

39 | Ample space for tree planting to soften impact of a building needs to be | 9.26-9.29
provided.

40 | A number of trees have been removed from the site. 9.26-9.29

41 | The development would appear as an overbearing and discordant 9.2-9.12
feature to the detriment of the street scene.

42 | Overlooking, loss of privacy and reduction in light to the adjacent flats 9.13-9.20
in Heron Lodge.

43 | Overbearing and loss of amenity for residents of Heron Lodge. 9.13-9.20

Statutory consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Lead Local A Drainage Strategy is required to demonstrate that the | Paragraph 9.34

Flood development complies with the requirements of the Non-

Authority Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage

Systems.

Additional drainage information has been submitted and
further comments are awaited.

Conservation | The proposal will cause less than substantial harm to the

Paragraphs 9.2-

17




Officer

setting of the heritage asset (Conservation Area). The
proposed building is too large with a weak design and lacks
amenity space. The proposal would result in the demolition
of an attractive Edwardian building, replacing it with a
building which lacks a focused and well-rounded design. It
is in conflict with Local plan policies DG1 and CA2 and
policy HE1 of the emerging local plan. The applicant has
failed to justify the harm to Inner Windsor Conservation
Areas setting as required by the NPPF para 194.

9.12

Environmental
Protection

Should planning permission be granted conditions are
suggested which include details of measures to acoustically
insulate the habitable rooms against aircraft noise and
construction conditions to protect the surrounding occupiers
during construction.

Noted.

Tree officer

There are no trees/vegetation of any note within the site. It
would be beneficial to restore some tree cover to improve
the appearance of the street on this prominent road junction
as well as improving the quality of the site for future
occupiers. There are two important highway trees, a Lime
and a Sycamore with radial root protection areas of 5.4m
and 4m respectively. The proposed building and main units
1, 3 and 8 would come to within 1.5m of the crown of the
Lime tree. One main window in each apartment would face
towards the crown of the Lime. The proposal is likely to
generate pressure to detrimentally prune or remove the tree
to improve light into the building. There is also likely to be
concerns over the proximity of the tree and its over-
dominance particularly when the tree sways. Insufficient
space for any sustainable structural planting has been
provided. The planting of 2 large growing trees should be
provided for, but this will require a change of layout.

The scheme is contrary to policies N6, DG1, H10 and H11.

Paragraphs
9.26-9.29

Highways

No highway objections subject to the imposition of

conditions.

Paragraphs
9.21-9.25

Others

Group

Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

The Windsor
& Eton
Society

The Society remains of the opinion that the bulk and mass of
the proposals would be detrimental to the character of this
prominent site in a suburban area and believe that the
application should be refused.

In particular ask for the following points to be taken into
consideration:

Bulk and mass — The new design, although an improvement,
would still be overbearing in the street scene and would not
allow sufficient space for the meaningful garden landscaping
and green boundaries which should accompany
development in an area defined as a ‘leafy residential
suburb’ in the Borough's Townscape Assessment. A
development of 14 units is simply too large for a site of this
size in this position. The decision letter dismissing the
previous appear in 2013 makes it clear that changes to
design are not enough to overcome the issues of mass and
bulk of the proposed building and the lack of setbacks to

Paragraphs
9.21-9.25

18




accommodate appropriate landscaping, such as have been
provided in relation to other new buildings nearby. The
inspector’s conclusion that the development would constitute
‘a direct and harmful incursion into the spaciousness of the
character of the area’ still applies.

Conservation of heritage-

Since the 2013 appeal the Society in conjunction with a
Borough  Conservation Officer and the Windsor
Neighbourhood Plan Forum has drawn up a list of Windsor
Non-designated Heritage Assets (NDHAS) in order to inform
potential developers in the area. Essex Lodge is included in
the list. The NDHA list does not yet have the status of a
supplementary planning document as the Borough have not
been in a position to allocate resources to developing it
further. It is however embedded in the draft Windsor
Neighbourhood Plan which is about to be published for pre-
submission consultation. The Borough are also committed to
the development of such a list and support its inclusion in the
NP. Developers will be expected to explain the effect of any
development on a NDHA such as Essex Lodge or on its
setting and to justify any adverse impact.

Essex Lodge is particularly important because of its gateway
setting in conjunction with the similar building opposite which
is within the Conservation Area. In these circumstances we
would expect any proposal to demolish the heritage asset to
be accompanied by a reasoned justification specifying why it
is thought appropriate to demolish the asset, and how it is
proposed to mitigate the impact on the town’s heritage.

Whilst local listing does not provide additional planning
controls, the fact that a particular building or site appears as
part of a local list means its conservation as a heritage asset
is consistent with NPPF objectives, and this must be taken
as a material consideration in determining the outcome of
relevant planning applications. Historic England advice
states:

‘In deciding any relevant planning permission that affects a
locally listed heritage asset or its setting, the NPPF requires
amongst other things that local planning authorities should
take into account the desirability of sustaining and
enhancing the significance of such heritage assets and of
putting them to viable uses consistent with their
conservation. They are also obliged to consider the positive
contribution that conserving such heritage assets can make
to sustainable communities including their economic
vitality...’

In short, consider that the design is a distinct improvement
over the previous one but the planning application should be
refused until the points made above have been addressed.

19




9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

i Impact on the character and appearance of the site itself, the locality in general and the
Adjacent Conservation Area.

i Impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties/future occupants;
i Impact on highway safety and parking;

iv Impact on trees/landscaping;

v Affordable Housing;

vi Other Material Considerations.

i Impact on the character and appearance of the site itself, the locality in general and the
adjacent Conservation Area.

Section 12 (achieving well-designed places) of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
emphasises the importance of the design of the built environment. Paragraph 127 states that
planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments, amongst other things, are
visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping and are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting.

Policy H10 of the Local Plan relates to housing layout and design. High standards of design and
landscaping will be required where possible, to enhance the existing environment. Policy H11
states that planning permission will not be granted for schemes that introduce a scale or density
that would be incompatible with or cause damage to the character and amenity of an area.

Policy DG1 states that the design of new buildings should be compatible with the established
street facade having regard to the scale, height and building lines of adjacent properties.
Development proposals, where appropriate, will be expected to include landscaping schemes.
Harm should not be caused to the character of the surrounding area through development which
is cramped or which results in the loss of important features which contribute to that character.

Policy CA2 requires that any development will enhance or preserve the character or appearance
of a Conservation Area. New buildings should be of a high design standard which is sympathetic
in terms of siting, proportion, scale, form, height, materials and detailing to adjacent buildings and
the character of the area in general.

Emerging policy SP3 entitled ‘Character and design of new development requires new
development to contribute towards achieving sustainable high quality design in the Borough. A
development proposal will be considered high quality design and acceptable where it achieves a
number of design principles include respecting and enhancing the local natural or historic
character of the environment, paying particular regard to urban grain, layouts, rhythm, density,
scale, bulk, massing, proportions, trees, water features, enclosure and materials. Emerging policy
HOS5 requires all new housing to be developed at a density that is consistent with achieving good
design, including making efficient use of the land available and having regard to the character
and location of the area. Proposals for higher density residential schemes in sustainable locations
in the around town centres will be permitted. The density of development will be informed by the
layout of the proposal compared to the prevailing character of the surrounding area and the need
to ensure satisfactory residential amenity for both the proposed accommodation and nearby
residential properties.

20



9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

The Townscape Character Assessment describes this area as ‘leafy residential suburbs’ which
are low density residential suburbs comprising large detached houses in spacious, irregular, well
treed plots, typically dating from the early 20" Century to the present day. The character is
defined by large properties set well back from the road and some distinctive building styles are
evident including early 20™ Century ‘Arts and Crafts’ architecture.

This application follows two previous applications to redevelop the site for 14 apartments which
were refused and dismissed on appeal. In determining with previous application under reference
number 13/01689/FULL the Inspector noted that ‘the current building makes a limited albeit
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the site and area through its historic
appearance, and the retained trees and soft landscaping.” The Inspector noted (paragraph 6)
that the roundabout location displays a variety in building types around its edge. The two
northern corners of the roundabout, which are in the conservation area, contain buildings of a
generally restrained scale. The remaining two corners accommodate flatted buildings of
significant scale and mass.’ Despite reference to the large scale flatted developments he raised
significant concern to the layout and massing of the development and noted the lack of space for
landscaping, which he felt would create a development form that would be detrimental to the
appearance of the site and the locality. He acknowledged that the site ‘does have some gateway
gualities, being located on a main junction on an approach into the town centre........ However,
the layout and consequent large mass of the proposals would not be in character with the other
corners of this gateway junction, where large developments are set back to enable and maintain
a sense of spaciousness. The proposed development would bring a hard urban form close to the
site boundary, and would lack a suitable setback. This would prevent the establishment of a
reasonable level of vegetation and result in a constrained layout not in character with the
spacious ‘leafy residential’ character on the area behind the site, or the different, but also
spacious character of the other corners of the roundabout.’(Paragraph 8). The Inspector also
raised concerns about the built form projecting in front of the existing building line established by
Heron Lodge and other buildings to the east. He wrote (paragraph 9) ‘the building would
therefore be a discordant element, and disrupt the regular setbacks along those part of the street.
It was considered that the obtrusive nature of the flank wall with its bulky presence, awkward roof
massing showing the flat area at the apex of the roof and blank facade would contribute to the
detrimental and harmful effect on the character and appearance of the site in views along the
road, much of which is within the Conservation Area.’

It is considered that many of the issues raised by the Inspector are relevant to the current
scheme and whilst it is acknowledged that the current proposal has sought to address the issues
raised by the previous Inspector, it is not considered that the current scheme satisfactorily
overcomes them.

The existing Edwardian building, built in 1875, retains many authentic Edwardian features and
makes a positive contribution to the character of the area. It is situated in a prominent location
adjacent to the Inner Windsor Conservation Area and acts as an important entry point into the
Conservation Area and Osborne Road. Since the last appeal in 2013 it is understood that the
building has now been included in a list of Non-designated Heritage Assets however this list does
not yet have any status and at this stage no weight can be given to these documents. As noted
by the previous Inspectors there is currently no control over the removal of the current building
since it does not lie within the Conservation Area. However given that the site is in an important,
sensitive location adjoining the Inner Windsor Conservation Area it would have been expected
that a Heritage Assessment to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected would
have been submitted in accordance with paragraph 189 of the NPPF. This has not been
provided.

The proposal comprises the demolition of the existing 2 storey building which has an overall
height of approximately 10m and its replacement with a substantially larger 3 / 4 storey building
which would have an overall height of 13.2m reducing to 11.65m adjacent to Heron Lodge. It is
noted that the ground floor is to be set slightly below the existing ground level. The current
scheme provides a different layout and appearance to the previous appeal schemes and includes
under croft parking. The scheme has attempted to address some of the issues raised by the
previous Inspector however concern is still raised regarding the overall size, scale, bulk and
massing of the building on this prominent corner plot. The building still comes close to the road

21



9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

frontages and insufficient space has been provided to provide any meaningful tree
planting/landscaping which is characteristic of the ‘Leafy Residential Suburbs’ designation. A
proportion of the building would still project in front of the building line of Heron Lodge in Osborne
Road and come close to the Bolton Avenue frontage. In addition whilst the proposal picks up on
the Edwardian architecture, it is still not considered to be good design. The important elements of
Edwardian architecture are briefly touched upon in the overall design but appear incomplete or
half attempted. For example the window design is not considered to be true to the architecture of
the building it is supposed to be mimicking. The roof design includes large expanses of crown
roof which adds to the overall bulk of the building and is wholly out of keeping with the Edwardian
architecture and does not preserve or enhance the adjoining Conservation Area. The proposal
has no clear principal elevation which results in a relatively weak overall design. The visual
impact of the under croft parking also undermines the design intent.

It is considered that the proposed development, by virtue of its siting, layout, height, size, bulk
and design would appear cramped and unduly prominent and obtrusive in the street scene and
would be harmful to the spacious character and appearance of the site itself and the locality in
general including the setting of the adjacent Conservation Area. The proposal fails to comply
with Local Plan policies DG1, H10, H11 and CA2 and emerging policies SP3, HO5 and HE1 and
guidance set out in the NPPF.

ii Impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties/future occupants

It is necessary to carefully consider the impact of the proposal on the living conditions of any
neighbouring properties particularly in terms of light, outlook and privacy. Paragraph 127 (f) of the
NPPF (2018) states developments should “create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible
and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future
users”.

Emerging Policy SP3 states that development will be expected to have no unacceptable effect on
the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of adjoining properties in terms of privacy, light,
disturbance, vibration, pollution, dust, smell and access to sunlight and daylight.

The adjacent Heron Lodge comprises a 3 storey block of flats which is set down below the height
of the application site by approximately 1m. The building is shallow in depth and has front and
rear windows and windows in the flank elevation facing the application site at ground, first and
second floor levels. The proposed building would be sited close to the flank boundary of the site
with Heron Lodge and would have a height of 11.6m and project 9.5m beyond the rear elevation
of Heron Lodge. Given the difference in land levels and the size, scale and depth of the proposed
building in proximity to Heron Lodge it is considered that the building would appear overbearing
and unduly dominant when viewed from Heron Lodge and would result in an unacceptable loss of
outlook. There are a number of windows proposed in the flank elevation, which would serve
habitable rooms, and there is concern that these windows would result in an unacceptable level
of overlooking and loss of privacy to Heron Lodge. The proposed under croft car parking would
also be situated in an elevated position close to Heron Lodge producing an unneighbourly form of
development. It has also not been adequately demonstrated that the proposed development
would not result in an unacceptable loss of light to the occupants of Heron Lodge.

The Coach House, number 1 Bolton Avenue and number 3 Bolton Avenue lie to the south of the
site and a minimum distance of 23m would be maintained between the proposed building and
these properties. The Coach House has a courtyard garden which is enclosed by a high wall and
hedge. Whilst it is acknowledged that the aspect from these neighbouring properties would be
altered it is not considered that the proposal would result in an unacceptable impact on the living
conditions of these properties in terms of light, outlook and privacy given the distance which
would be maintained and the resulting relationship.

22



9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

The properties on the opposite side of Bolton Avenue, numbers 2a and 2b are visually separated
from the application site by the road and a distance of at least 25 metres is maintained between
the proposed building and these properties. It is not considered that the proposal would result in
an unacceptable impact on the living conditions of these properties in terms of light, outlook and
privacy. Concern has been raised in the representations to car lights shining into the front
windows of these properties from vehicles exiting the site however it is not considered that this
would cause substantial harm to the amenities of these properties sufficient to justify an
objection. Likewise it is not considered that any objection in terms of noise and pollution could be
sustained.

It is considered that sufficient distance would be maintained between the proposed development
and the flats at Dene House and Kings House and the proposal would not result in any significant
loss of amenity to these properties.

There are roof top terraces proposed to serve units 13 and 14. However these terraces would be
sunken below the surrounding pitch roofs and would not introduce any issues in terms of
overlooking and loss of privacy.

In conclusion, whilst it is considered that the amenities of the future occupants of the apartments
would be acceptable it is considered that the proposed development, by virtue of its siting, size,
scale and design would appear overbearing and unduly prominent when viewed from Heron
Lodge and would produce an unneighbourly form of development to the detriment of their living
conditions in terms of light, outlook and privacy, contrary to emerging policy EP3 and paragraph
127 of the NPPF.

iii Impact on highway safety and parking

The site currently benefits from two vehicular accesses, one off Osborne Road and the other off
Bolton Avenue. It is proposed to stop up the access on Osborne Road and reconfigure the
existing access on Bolton Avenue to serve the proposed development. The stopping up of the
existing access onto a primary distributor road is considered to be a highway gain.

On street parking on the A308 Osborne Road is prohibited and enforced by double yellow lines.
Bolton Avenue is within a controlled parking zone, containing a mix of double yellow lines,
residential permit holder parking and time limited parking restrictions.

The development provides a total of 20 car parking spaces. Strictly speaking the proposal would
require 25 car parking spaces to accord with the adopted parking standard. However the
proposed parking ratio of 1.5 parking spaces for each 2 bed unit and 1 space per 1 bed unit is
considered acceptable in this town centre location and given the parking restrictions in the
surrounding area.

Parking bays 16 & 17 are arranged in tandem and it is inferred that these 2 spaces would be
assigned to one of the larger apartments. The application show indicative cycle parking for the
development. The scheme would attract a demand for 14 secure and cycle storage facilities and
this could be covered by a planning condition in the event of planning permission is granted. A
refuse compound is also shown to be located near the site entrance and further details could be
secured by condition in the event of planning permission being granted.

The proposal is likely to result in a reduction in vehicular movements onto the highway network
and the introduction of 14 residential units raises no highway or parking concerns subject to the
imposition of suitable conditions.

iv Impact on trees/landscaping

It would appear that some trees towards the northern corner of the site have been removed in
recent years and there are now no trees or vegetation of any note within the site and the majority
of the site is hard surfaced. It is considered that it would be beneficial to restore some tree cover
to help improve the appearance of the site on this prominent road junction as well as improving
the quality of the site for future occupiers.

23



9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

9.31

9.32

There are two important highway trees, a Lime to the north of the access on Bolton Avenue and a
Sycamore next to the junction of Bolton Avenue and Osborne Road. Both these trees are mature
but have not reached their ultimate size. The trees have radial root protection areas of 5.4m and
4m respectively. The proposed scheme shows the building to be within 1.5m of the crown of the
Lime tree and windows in units 1, 3 and 8 will face out towards this Lime tree. Given that the
ground floor room is single aspect and the windows on the first and second floors are the main
windows serving the lounge there is likely to be considerable pressure to prune or remove this
tree to improve the light into the building. There is also likely to be concerns relating to over-
dominance, particularly when the tree sways in windy weather.

The layout is dominated by the building and car park and very little space has been provided for
any sustainable structural planting. The current layout does not allow for the planting of any large
trees.

The proposed development, by virtue of its size, siting, layout and design would result in future
pressure to reduce or remove the adjacent Lime tree in Bolton Avenue and insufficient space has
been provided within the site to provide any meaningful planting/landscaping to the detriment of
the character and appearance of the locality and contrary to local plan policies N6 and DG1 and
emerging policies SP3 and NR2.

v Affordable Housing

Local Plan policy H3 requires sites of 0.5ha or over or schemes proposing 15 or more additional
dwellings to provide affordable housing and requires 30% of units on qualifying sites to be
affordable. The emerging policy HO3 requires a minimum requirement of 30% affordable
housing units to be sought on sites proposing over 10 net additional dwellings or which have a
combined gross internal floor area over 1000 sg.m. The delivery of affordable housing will be
expected to be provided on-site or on an alternative site, only if provision would result in a more
effective use of available resources or would meet an identified housing need, such as providing
a better social mix and wider housing choice.

In addition to the above, Paragraph 64 of the NPPF states:

“Where major development involving the provision of housing is proposed, planning policies and
decisions should expect at least 10% of the homes to be available for affordable home
ownership (Footnote 29 As part of the overall affordable housing contribution from the site),
unless this would exceed the level of affordable housing required in the area, or significantly
prejudice the ability to meet the identified affordable housing needs of specific groups.
Exemptions to this 10% requirement should also be made where the site or proposed
development:

a) provides solely for Build to rent homes;

b) provides specialist accommodation for a group of people with specific needs (such as
purpose-built accommodation for the elderly or students);

c) is proposed to be developed by people who wish to build or commission their own homes;

or d) is exclusively for affordable housing, an entry-level exception site or a rural exception site.”

As a major development, the proposal should therefore include an affordable housing
contribution to comply with the NPPF and to ensure that sufficient affordable housing is
provided for the Borough. Policy H3 of the Local Plan requires 30% of units on qualifying sites
to be affordable. The NPPF requires at least 10% of those affordable units to be for affordable
forms of ownership. The proposal has not provided any affordable housing on site nor any
justification as to why it cannot be provided either on site or via a financial contribution. The
proposal therefore fails to deliver any affordable housing and should be refused.

24



9.33

9.34

10.

10.1

11.

111

12.

13.

vi Other Material Considerations

Local Plan Policy CF1 and emerging policy IF7 seek to protect existing community facilities. The
existing use was not deemed to be a community facility in the consideration of the previous
planning applications and therefore no objection is raised to the loss of the use.

The Lead Local Flood Authority has requested a drainage strategy to demonstrate that the
development complies with the requirements of the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for
Sustainable Drainage Systems. Additional drainage information has been supplied and further
comments are awaited from the LLFA.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is CIL liable. The existing gross internal floor area has been calculated at
446.04sg.m. The proposed gross internal floor area has been calculated at 1,784 sq.m. The net
additional floor area has therefore been calculated at 1,337.96 sq.m.

CONCLUSION

It is not considered that the current scheme has sufficiently overcome the previous objections
raised by the Inspector. The resulting building is still too large for the plot and would detract from
the spacious ‘leafy residential’ character of the locality and have a harmful impact on the
character and appearance of the area including the setting of the adjacent Conservation Area
contrary to adopted policies DG1, H10, H11 and CA2 and emerging policies SP3, HO5 and HE1.
The proposal would also have an adverse impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring flats
at Heron Lodge and could result in future pressure to remove or reduce the adjacent Lime tree to
the detriment of the visual amenity of the locality. There would also be a lack of opportunity to
provide for any significant soft landscaping. The proposal has also failed to provide any
affordable housing. For these reasons it is considered that the proposal is unacceptable and
should be refused.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
Appendix B — plan and elevation drawings
Appendix C — Cross sections

Appendix D — Comparison elevations

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL

The proposal development, because of its siting, layout, height, size, bulk and design would
appear cramped and unduly prominent and obtrusive in the street scene and would be harmful to
the spacious character and appearance of the site itself and the locality in general including the
setting of the adjacent Conservation Area. The proposal fails to comply with Local Plan policies
DG1, H10, H11l and CA2 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan
Incorporating Alterations adopted June 2003 and emerging policies SP3, HO5 and HE1 of the
Borough Local Plan 2013-2033 Submission Version and guidance set out in paragraph 127 of the
NPPF.

The proposed development, by virtue of its siting, size, scale and design would appear
overbearing and unduly prominent when viewed from Heron Lodge and would result in an
unneighbourly form of development to the detriment of their living conditions in terms of light,
outlook and privacy, contrary to emerging policy SP3 of the Borough Local Plan 2013-2033
Submission Version and guidance set out in paragraph 127 of the NPPF.

The proposed development, because of its siting, size, layout and design would result in future
pressure to reduce or remove the adjacent Lime tree in Bolton Avenue and insufficient space has
been provided within the site to provide any meaningful planting/landscaping to the detriment of
the character and visual amenity of the locality and contrary to local plan policies N6 and DG1 of
the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan Incorporating Alterations adopted

25



June 2003 and emerging policies SP3 and NR2 of the Borough Local Plan 2013-2033
Submission Version.

In the absence of a mechanism to secure Affordable Housing the proposal fails to comply with
Paragraphs 63 and 64 of the National Planning Policy Framework and policy H3 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Adopted Local Plan and emerging Policy HO3 of the
Borough Local Plan 2013 -2033 (Submission Version).

26



APPENDIX A — SITE LOCATION &

BLOCK PLAN

27



FrRANG
Es

DENE HOUSE

garages

28

&

El Sub S

17600

17seE

sat

r7ea

A



APPENDIX B — FLOOR PLANS &

ELEVATIONS

MY HO0Td Z8Hld

.’r\

(=]

s
__

D




]
«l

Gl

NYId 50O Q¥HL

co

c]

=l

=

&l

Sqpopu pmar =

o Aezopm -

iy

Aucajeg

(waa]
B
ss)

-

usuTiN

N4 20071 ONGD3S

=]

LA
-

o

mnw|
B

By

Aucajeg

El

|
ol

30



=]

=}

0 2

&

=

i

NYId J00Y

ey wpa,
onEu P

il

en

o

%
g

|
- |
: |
m-mnj

o

P

R e

ol ey

<l
=]

AR s

L e s |

(=1}

31



TR

(pascdold Se 583 UUON] €-9 NOILYAT 13

pasodold seise3 yInosg) -2 NOILYAIT3

(pasodold se 1sapl JUON] ¥- NOILYAS 13

32



I

Qd350d04d 58 0-0 NOILD3S

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

APPENDIX C - PROPOSED

SECTIONS

4
T e
== [r— woopeg
L (2) e
IEES . e WY
f0 7 UL weg  ||synsuzg ] ajng=ug .a_nww_m [
® ©
fien s . = i
[/ uaiy weg ||sng-uz R ea apg-uz v i
@) D I
il 1 | (1o
wonupag aing-u3
JajsEp ﬁ_w—. @ =R
catgm
e
d350d04d 58 8- NOILD3S
sapio . m}m« @ . [ eorez: - PPbar:
B oaueRus 3
|EUnwwag @ F
e sunia e, WY
Lo sng=ug y e) 5
m e £ §
mm =[] [=]=] =] Buluig e
ol oo O | =gz weg @ ‘m _H_ .|
A 0o m| _H__H_

wrETe

Q350d0¥d 58 D-0 NOILD3S

j| wooupesn

1msEp

wonpEy

 E0ELE] O

O E@

LI

AU

03S0d0dd 58 ¥ NOILO3S

WOCIDEE
ssel

angeug || Wowpes

sing-a

©
B
pidng
©)

E

]

=

wocen

o woonpeg
JsiEE

ans-3
@
pdng
o
=
=
e
<
¢
&

33



APPENDIX D — COMPARISON

ELEVATIONS

EoET]

pasodold S8 UD|EAS|S 158\ UIN0S

IANNIAY
NOL70d

|
N

([
BN
T
Y
-

BEDE BR0W

NEEEIEE RIS

I 1 I ETYE

@ INNIAY

= |
2] |
22| I [
.
L

= cAD 7 _ .
BIessIE O\ML N . w\Jp (

34



DENE HOUSE
{outlne Indlcated only)

fidge- 3035

APPENDIX D — COMPARISON
ELEVATIONS

g
DENE HOUSE
(outllne Indlcated only)

BOLTON AVENUE

Il
A~
)7}“ |
A ARG
S
A
BOLTON AVENUE

o |
™
A,
D
iV
(o(gj
.

North East as Proposed (facing Osborne Road)

North East elevatlon as Exlsting (facln

||||||||| ‘ |||T||m
' f*"|\|||||\||||| pl
I|||||| | ‘
—L E
H1
J]J:-"
E ]
A B2 B
ZuWw -
| i g g8
§t N L £9

35




WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

7 January 2019 ltem: 2

Application 18/03138/FULL

No.:

Location: Land To Rear of 54 To 60 Clewer Hill Road Windsor

Proposal: Partial demolition of garages, and change of use and conversion of 6 garages and 2
storage buildings to a single storey dwelling, with parking, access and amenity space.

Applicant: Mr Gray

Agent: Mr Barry Watts

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Clewer East Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Briony Franklin on 01628 796007 or at
briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

51

SUMMARY

The proposal seeks planning permission for the partial demolition of an existing garage block and
its conversion into a 3 bed residential unit. The footprint of the building would be identical to the
previously approved scheme under application number 16/01203/FULL for a 2 bed residential
unit, which is still extant. The overall design and layout is very similar to the approved scheme
and would be single storey, with a flat roof and provide parking for 2 vehicles.

The current application follows 2 recent refusals under application numbers 17/03636/FULL &
18/01937/FULL which involved the introduction of 2 and 3 residential units on this site and
introduced two storey development. It is considered that the previous reasons for refusal have
been satisfactorily addressed by this latest application.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 13 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Bowden, if the recommendation is to approve, due to neighbour
objections, the previous refusal and issues relating to overdevelopment, closeness to
adjoining properties and loss of trees.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site lies on the northern side of Clewer Hill Road and forms part of a garage
court. The garages are accessed via a narrow driveway from Clewer Hill Road. A pair of semi-
detached dwellings have recently been completed to the east of the entrance to the site on
Clewer Hill Road. The site lies to the rear of maisonettes, numbered 54-60 Clewer Hill Road, and
adjacent to the parking/garaging area situated to the rear of the neighbouring flats at Haileybury
Court. To the north and east of the site lie detached dwellings, numbers 6 and 7 Addington Close.

The site lies within a predominantly residential area with a mix of housing styles and ages.
KEY CONSTRAINTS

A mature protected oak tree lies within the adjacent garden of number 7 Addington Close.
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The proposal involves the partial demolition and conversion of 6 garages and a store into a 3
bed, single storey residential unit. The building would have the same footprint as the previously
approved scheme under application number 16/01203/FULL. The building would have an overall
height of 3.2m and the main aspect of the dwelling would look out onto a private garden area at
the front of the building which would be enclosed by a 1.8m high close boarded fence. A cycle

36



5.2

5.3

6.1

store and bin area are to be provided within the garden. A landscaped entrance/parking area for
2 vehicles is to be accessed via the existing driveway. It is also proposed to retain 3 of the
existing garages for use by existing tenants.

To the rear of the site lies a mature Oak tree within the rear garden of number 7 Addington Close
and it is proposed to retain the existing ground level to the rear of the existing garage block and
finish with gravel. The level within the existing footprint of the garage building is to be taken down
to the adjacent ground level and paved.

The relevant planning history is set out below:

Ref. Description Decision and Date
02/81891/FULL | Demolition of six garages and erection of two Dismissed on appeal
semi-detached dwelling houses with associated
parking.

03/83436/FULL | Demolition of 6 lock up garages and 2 stores and Refused and dismissed
the erection of a 4 bedroom detached house. on appeal.

15/03216/FULL | Change of use and conversion of 5 garages and 2 | Refused 30/11/2015
storage buildings to a single storey dwelling with
parking and amenity space.

16/01203/FULL | Partial demolition of garages and change of use Permitted 31/08/2016
and conversion of 6 garages and 2 storage
buildings to a single storey dwelling with parking,
access and amenity space.

17/03636/FULL | Construction of 3 x 1 bedroom flats following Refused 04/04/2018
demolition of garages and store.

18/01937/FULL | Constriction of 1 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed residential | Refused 24/09/2018
units following the demolition of garages and
stores.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Issue Adopted Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance DG1, H10,H11
of area
Highways P4 AND T5
Trees N6

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018)

Section 2 — Achieving sustainable development
Section 4- Decision—making

Section 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Section 9- Promoting Sustainable Transport
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

37



https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.1

7.2

7.3

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2. SP3, HO5
of area
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1, IF2
Trees NR2

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the
emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more detail in the assessment below.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

. RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
. RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

22 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 9/11/18.

18 letters were received objecting to the application from 14 neighbouring properties,
summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. Another attempt to shoehorn a residential development into an See paragraphs
unsuitable site. 9.2-9.7
2. Size, cramped layout and poor design is detrimental of amenity of See paragraph
existing residents and future occupants. 9.2 -9.10
3. Development would be inappropriate and incompatible to this See paragraphs
location. 9.2-9.7

38


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

4. Bedrooms 2 & 3 would be under the canopy of the Oak tree and See paragraph
would make them very dark when in full leaf resulting in pressure to 9.6
prune or remove the tree. Precedent for this argument in dismissing
previous appeal and application number 18/01937/FULL.
5. The amenity area to the rear of the building is completely covered by | See paragraph
the canopy of the Oak tree. 9.6
6. The two reasons for refusal under application number 18/01937/FULL | See paragraph
have not been addressed by this proposal. 9.7
7. Scale and density of development will damage the character and See paragraphs
amenity of the area, contrary to DG1, H10 and H11 and N6. 9.2-9.7
8. Fails to provide a high standard of design and landscaping and would | See paragraphs
not enhance existing environment. 9.2-9.7
9. Would offer a poor standard of accommodation. See paragraph
9.5
10. | Insufficient parking. No visitor parking provided. Will result in more See paragraph
parking on Clewer Hill Road and in Addington Close. 9.15&9.16
11. | Out of character with existing residential buildings See paragraphs
9.2-9.7
12. | Sets a dangerous precedent for allowing conversion of other garages | See paragraph
into houses. 9.20
13. | Cramped overdevelopment of a very small site. See paragraphs
9.2-9.7
14. | Significant loss of privacy and amenity to number 7 Addington Close. | See paragraph
9.9
15. | Due to differences in land levels the building would be elevated by See paragraph
one metre above house and garden at number 7 Addington Close. 9.9
16. | A 3m high fence along the north and east boundaries of site would See paragraph
have to be erected to prevent any overlooking and loss of privacy. 9.9
17. | Previous appeal decision under application number 02/81891 and See paragraph
tree comments provided under 18/01937/FULL sets the precedent for | 9.6
rejecting the current proposal.
18. | Adequate turning for large vehicles has not been provided. See paragraphs
9.15 and 9.16
19. | The turning arrangement within the forecourt area is not viable if See paragraph
owners of the existing garages are parked outside their respective 9.17
garages.
20. | Developer is required to provide a financial contributions in See paragraph
compliance with condition R3. 10.2

Statutory consultees

Consultee Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Highways

No objection.

Paragraphs
9.13-9.17

Tree Officer

Providing the tree protection measures are carried out in
accordance with the plans and documents provided, the
application is recommended for approval subject to a
landscape condition.

Paragraph 9.11
&9.12

Environmental

Should planning permission be granted conditions

Paragraph 9.19

subject to a condition and informative

Health relating to acoustic insulation of habitable rooms against
aircraft noise and a restriction on hours of
construction/deliveries.
Ecology Officer No objection to the application on ecological grounds Paragraph 9.18

39




9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i The impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area.
il The impact of the proposal on the neighbouring amenity and the amenity of future occupiers.
iii The impact on the adjacent TPO tree.
iv Highways and parking.
i Impact of the character and appearance of the area

Local Plan Policy DG1 and emerging policy SP3 set out the design guidance for new
development. Local Plan Policy H10 refers specifically to new residential development schemes,
requiring them to display high standards of design and landscaping in order to create attractive,
safe and diverse residential areas. Policy H11 states that in established residential areas
planning permission will not be granted for schemes which introduce a scale or density which
would be incompatible with or cause damage to the character and amenity of the area. Emerging
policy HO5 requires all new housing to be developed at a density that is consistent with achieving
good design and the density of development will be informed by amongst other things the need to
ensure satisfactory residential amenity for both the proposed accommodation and nearby
residential properties. The NPPF (revised July 2018) Section 12 ‘Achieving well-designed places’
states that ‘the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning
and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development
acceptable to communities.” Paragraph 127 states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments amongst other things function well and add to the overall quality of the
area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive as
a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; are sympathetic
to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape setting,
while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased
densities) and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

The site lies within a predominately residential suburban area with a mix of housing types and
styles including terraces, flats, maisonettes, semi-detached and detached dwellings. The site is
set behind numbers 54-60 Clewer Hill road and currently forms part of a garage court. Whilst the
site is not readily visible from the public realm it is visible from the adjoining neighbouring
properties.

The principle of residential development on this site has already been accepted. A 2 bed, single
storey dwelling has been permitted on this site under application number 16/01203/FULL and is
still extant. The permitted scheme is a low level development with a height similar to the existing
garages and the accommodation is orientated inwards to look out onto a private garden. The
layout provides space for 2 parking spaces and some landscaping. The current scheme is very
similar to the permitted scheme but now proposes a 3 bed unit rather than a 2 bed unit. The
footprint is identical to the previous scheme and the overall design, layout and height is very
similar to the approved scheme with the exception of some changes to the fenestration.

It is considered that the creation of a single storey dwelling in this garage court setting would not
appear out of keeping in this context and would not be readily visible from outside the site. Unlike
the previously refused schemes, the development would introduce a scale and density of
development which would be compatible with and not cause damage to the character and
amenity of the area. It would display a reasonably high standard of design and provide a
useable, private amenity space and space for planting/landscaping to produce a satisfactory
layout. It is considered that the layout would function well and provide a good sense of space
around the building as well as an attractive, high quality place to live. The majority of the rooms

40



9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

would look out onto the private garden, which would be enclosed by a close boarded fence, and a
landscaped area at the front of the building.

Many of the representations have referred to the previous application reference number
18/01937/FULL and the previous Inspectors appeal decision under 02/81891/FULL and in
particular have referred to the shading which would occur to the rear amenity space and living
accommodation from the canopy of the adjacent Oak tree especially when in full leaf and the
resulting future pressure to reduce or remove the tree. However, unlike the previous schemes,
this current proposal provides the main private garden at the front of the property and does not
need to rely on the rear space for its amenity. In addition, with the exception of a bedroom
window (bed 3) and bathroom window, the majority of the windows now look out onto the front
amenity space. It is not considered that the current layout would result in the same pressure to
remove or reduce the adjacent tree and the previous objection has now been sufficiently
addressed.

In conclusion it is considered that the proposed scheme, which is very similar to the extant
permission, would produce an acceptable scheme with a more satisfactory layout and density
than the previously refused schemes and would accord with adopted policies DG1, H10 and H11
and emerging policies SP3 and HO5.

ii Impact on the neighbouring amenity and the amenity of future occupiers

It is necessary to carefully consider the impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring
properties in terms of light, outlook and privacy. The existing flat roof garages are sited close to
the boundaries of the rear and side garden of number 7 Addington Close and the land level of the
garage court is set up approximately 0.75m above the ground level of number 7. The neighbour
has raised concern about potential overlooking and loss of privacy to the rear garden and
windows. There is a door, a small bathroom window and a bedroom window in the proposed
north elevation which would face towards the rear garden of humber 7 and a minimum distance
of 5m would be maintained.

Whilst it is acknowledged that the outlook from number 7 would change it is not considered that
the proposal would cause significant harm to the living conditions of the neighbouring property in
terms of light and outlook. Despite the difference in the land levels it is not considered that the
proposed ground floor windows would introduce an unacceptable level of overlooking and loss of
privacy to number 7 providing adequate boundary fencing/treatment is provided and this could be
secure by condition in the event of planning permission being granted.

No windows are proposed in the west elevation facing towards Haileybury Court and it is not
considered that the proposal would have a harmful effect on the living conditions of any of the
surrounding residential properties. As set out above it is considered that the proposal would also
provide a sufficient level of amenity for any future occupiers of the dwelling.

iii Impact on the adjacent Oak Tree

There is a protected Oak tree adjacent to the northern boundary, within the garden of number 7
Addington Close, which is an important landscape feature. The proposal involves demolishing
part of the garages/store which currently lies within the Root Protection Area of the Oak tree and
this should be a benefit in arboricultural terms. The proposal sits on an identical footprint to the
permitted scheme and during the course of the application further tree information has been
supplied, including foundation details, to accord with the previous details supplied under the
previous applications. Pile foundations are proposed to be used for the building within the RPA of
the Oak tree. Providing the tree protection measures are carried out in accordance with the
submitted plans/ documents and a suitable landscape condition is imposed it is considered that
the scheme should adequately secure the protection of this Oak tree.

As set out above it is not considered that the current layout would result in unacceptable pressure

to remove or reduce the size of the adjacent tree and this previous objection has therefore been
satisfactorily addressed. It is considered that the scheme adequately secures the protection of

41



9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

the Oak tree which contributes to the character and appearance of the area and therefore
accords with adopted policies N6 and DG1 and emerging policy NR2.

iv Highways and parking

The site is accessed via a drive off Clewer Hill Road, a classified road. The proposal involves the
removal of a number of garages and the loss of these garages has already been accepted in
principle under previous proposals for this site. A total of 2 car parking spaces are shown to be
provided in connection with the proposed residential unit and three garages are to be retained for
use by private individuals.

The current width of the access does not comply with RBWM’s current highway design guide.
The single track road is approximately 3.8m side, so it is not wide enough for two vehicles to
pass, but is wide enough for a service vehicle or for vehicles to pass a pedestrian. However it is
acknowledged that the application is likely to result in a reduction of vehicle usage in comparison
to when the garages were all in use and there are understood to have been no recorded
collisions within the vicinity of the access within the last 5 years. The use of the existing access is
therefore deemed acceptable and would not result in any adverse traffic or road safety impacts
on the local highway network.

The proposed site plan shows the provision of 2 parking spaces which measure 2.5m by 5m and
this complies with RBWM'’s current parking strategy. Details of secure, covered cycle storage
have been provided and there would be space within the site for a small delivery vehicle to turn.

The development is not considered to have a detrimental effect on the local highway network. A
refuse collection area, positioned 30m from Clewer Hill Road, has been provided and this was
previously agreed under application number 17/03636/FULL. The proposal does not raise any
significant highway concerns and it accords with the adopted parking standard. As such the
proposal complies with adopted policies T5 and P4.

It is intended to impose the same conditions which were imposed under the previous application
number 16/01203/FULL which includes a condition prevent vehicles parking in front of the 3
remaining garages to provide sufficient manoeuvring/turning space for vehicles to leave in a
forward gear.

v Other Material Considerations

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

10.

10.1

Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan Submission Version policies SP2,
SP3, HO5, IF1, IF2 and NR2 in this case. The above application is considered to comply with the
relevant policies listed within the Development Plan and those Borough Local Plan Submission
Version policies to which significant weight is to be accorded.

A bat survey was previously undertaken in association with application number 16/01203/FULL.
The bat survey report was undertake to an appropriate standard and concludes that the garages
are unlikely to be used by roosting bats. The landscape scheme will be expected to include
biodiversity enhancement and an informative will be added accordingly.

A condition is to be imposed relating to acoustic insulation of habitable rooms against aircraft
noise as previously imposed. An informative will be added to deal with construction/deliveries
hours.

Each application must be considered on its merits and it is not considered that granting planning
permission would set an undesirable precedent in this case.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

The development is CIL liable. CIL is charged at the rate of £240 per square metre. The
applicant has submitted the required Additional Information Requirement Form which confirms
the internal floor space of 112 sq.m. In order for the internal floor area of the existing garages
(157 sg.m) to be deducted from the proposed GIA residential floor space the applicant would

42



11.

111

12.

13.

need to provide evidence that the garages to be demolished have been in lawful use for parking
for 6 months in the last 3 years. A lease agreement for the site has been submitted however this
does not prove that the garages in question have been in lawful use for parking for 6 months
within the last 3 years. It is not therefore considered that the floor space of the existing garages
can be deducted and the CIL payment will need to be based solely on the new residential floor
space figures.

CONCLUSION

The current scheme is very similar to the extant scheme permitted under application number
16/01203/FULL. The footprint would be identical and the overall layout and design would be very
similar. The main difference is the increase in the number of bedrooms from 2 to 3. Given that the
parking requirement for 2 or 3 bed dwellings is the same and 2 parking spaces have been
provided to accord with the parking standards it is not considered that any objection can be
raised to the current scheme and all the previous reasons for refusal have been satisfactorily
overcome. It is considered that the application is acceptable in terms of its impact on the
character and appearance of the site itself and the locality in general, the impact on the living
conditions of the neighbouring properties and would secure the protection of the adjacent Oak
tree. The proposal is considered to accords with adopted policies DG1, H10, H11, P4, T5 and N6
and emerging policies SP2, SP3, HO5 and NR2.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
e Appendix B — plan and elevation drawings
e Appendix C - details of bike store

Appendix D — foundations details

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1

No development shall take place until detailed plans showing the existing and proposed ground
levels of the site together with the slab of the proposed development, relative to a fixed datum
point on adjoining land outside the application site, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved levels.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DGL1.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the tree protection measures set out in
the approved plans which include the Tree Protection Plan Rev E; foundation details (drawing
number NHO101/PSKO002A); cross section (drawing number NH0101/PSKO003A) ; proposed plan
(drawing number 2503/SK-101 Rev C) and the Arboricultural Survey Rev C.

Reason: To protect the Oak tree which contribute to the visual amenity of the site and
surrounding area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscaping works have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All hard and soft
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details following the
completion of the development and retained thereafter in accordance with the approved
details.Hard landscaping - These details shall include a detailed hard landscape specification and

43



10

supporting plan(s) to a recognised scale illustrating the proposed positions, dimensions, materials
and finished levels of: means of enclosures (e.g. fences, walls and gate piers) and hard surfaces
(e.g. driveways, car parking, footpaths, patios, decking)Where proposed hard
surfaces/structures/ground levels are to be altered within, or introduced into the root protection
areas of retained on/off site trees, scaled cross-section construction drawings and supporting
method statement will be required to support the hard landscape plan/specifications.B) Soft
landscaping - These details shall include; A) a detailed soft landscaping plan to a recognised
scale clearly illustrating the location of all trees/shrubs/hedges/plants to be planted and areas of
turf to be laid; B) a detailed written soft landscape specification detailing the quantity, density,
size, species, position and the proposed time or programme of planting of all
trees/shrubs/hedges/plants.  This  specification shall include details of ground
preparation/cultivation within and adjacent to root protection areas of retained on/off site trees,
and other operations associated with, tree/shrub/ hedge/plant establishment. If within a period of
five years from the date of planting of any tree/shrub/hedge/plant shown on the approved plan(s),
or any tree/shrub/hedge/plant in replacement for it is removed, uprooted, destroyed, dies, or
becomes seriously damaged or defective, another tree/shrub/hedge/plant of the same species
and size as that originally planted, shall be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 & N6

Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A, B and E of part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement, improvement or any other
alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building within the curtilage) of or to any dwelling
house the subject of this permission shall be carried out without planning permission having first
been obtained from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to control development which is likely to cause harm to an off-site protected
tree. Local Plan Policy N6.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
howing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities for
operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works period
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall be
implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking spaces have been provided in
accordance with the approved drawing. The spaces approved shall be retained for parking in
association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DGL1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until a vehicle turning head/space for use by
service/delivery vehicles has been provided and marked out in accordance with a layout that has
first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The space
approved shall be kept available for turning at all times and shall not be used for parking
purposes.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving Clewer
Hill Road in a forward gear. Relevant Policy T5.

No development shall take place until details of the measures to be taken to acoustically insulate
all habitable rooms of the development against aircraft noise, and to the internal boundary wall
with the remaining garage and the proposed bedroom, together with details of measures to
provide ventilation to habitable rooms, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be carried out and completed before the
development is first occupied for residential purposes and retained.

44



11

12

Reason: To ensure an acceptable living environment for future occupiers. Relevant Policies
Local Plan NAP2, H10.

Notwithstanding the detail shown on the plans hereby approved, no development shall
commence until details of the siting and design of all walls, fencing or any other means of
enclosure (including any retaining walls) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Such walls, fencing or other means of enclosure as may be approved
shall be erected before first occupation of the development unless the prior written approval of
the Local Planning Authority to any variation has been obtained.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory resultant appearance and standard of amenity of the site and
the surrounding area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan DG1.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

Informatives

The landscape scheme to be submitted in compliance with condition number 5 shall include
details of biodiversity enhancements, including native and wildlife-friendly landscaping to accord
with paragraph 175 of the NPPF.

All birds, their nests and eggs, are protected by law. It is a criminal offence (with certain
exemptions) to deliberately or recklessly take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst
it is in use or being built. The buildings on the site may be used by nesting birds and any works
to buildings with bird nests or vegetation clearance should take place outside the bird nesting
season (March - August inclusive). If this is not practical, areas to be cleared should first be
checked for bird nests by an appropriately qualified person. If bird nests are found works that
could disturb it must stop until any young have fledged the nest.

Due to the close proximity of the site to existing residential properties, the applicant's attention is
drawn to the Considerate Constructors Scheme initiative. This initiative encourages contractors
and construction companies to adopt a considerate and respectful approach to construction
works, so that neighbours are not unduly affected by noise, smells, operational hours, vehicle
parking at the site or making deliveries, and general disruption caused by the works. By signing
up to the scheme, contractors and construction companies commit to being considerate and
good neighbours, as well as being clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious,
responsible and accountable. The Council highly recommends the Considerate Constructors
Scheme as a way of avoiding problems and complaints from local residents and further
information on how to participate can be found at www.ccscheme.org.uk

It is noted that the existing buildings may contain asbestos. The applicant is recommended to
ensure that all contractors involved in the demolition and site clearance works are aware of the
requirements of the Control of Asbestos at Work Regulations 1987 (as amended) and should
contact the Health and Safety Executive at Priestley House, Priestley Road, Basingstoke, Hants,
RG24 9NW tel 01256 404000 for further information and advice.

applicant is advised to follow guidance with respect to dust control: London working group on Air
Pollution Planning and the Environment (APPLE): London Code of Practice, Part 1: The Control
of Dust from Construction; and the Building Research Establishment: Control of dust from
construction and demolition activities. Applicant should be aware the permitted hours of
construction working in the Authority are as follows:

- Friday 08.00 - 18.00

08.00 - 13.00

Working on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

45



APPENDIX A — SITE LOCATION

PLAN & LAYOUT

Q0EL
wsz 0% Sl O

00G- L
pasodolid ue|d a)ig

0sel - L
ue|d uoneoso

005l
wsz o §L 0Ol

00s:- L
1Xa8)u0J Ue|d a)iS

TEFCZ0001L J2qwnu 2ouzor “pansasal sibu iy ‘8102 WbuidoD umad (9) Aanns sa

46



PN peansdde
1 seuy Ampunog
o0y eums epdy

PoRIuG
vam dimg Buryeg

EDTE ¥
BEDIE 8

HEELLE

APPENDIX B — FLOOR PLAN

& ELEVATIONS

HEZL0EL
pecudde e Agem Symng

ooy Buippng Bunsig

ysa) janmiE Y peurmlas
ey pUnc bugsig

ofpmod sums

4 Gapang pesadaig
AL AL

2 (Ao Buuueyd
0 oupno pozog

popmog osoya
HER WE'L

wopmd
Al

oLl = == =

(10] ey
ueld 100j4 punois Lo

\

0058

1

0058

A [EUNLELDT,

dor
Al oy

Bl BRIy

47



00k -1

0oL -1
(Uyinos) uoneas|a apis paroiddy

(3sam) uojeas|e Jeal pasoiddy

00L -1 00l -1
(yinos) uoieas|d apis pasodold (3s9Mm) uoneas|s leal pasodo.ld

00L -1 00l - L
(ypiou) uoneas|e apis paroiddy (1se9) uoneas|s juoly paroiddy

(—

- il

(ypiou) uoneasje epis pasodold

00l - L
(1se9) uoneas|s juol pasodolid

48

uompuad £
PSASEA 30 0 SRUARL Y




APPENDIX C - BIKE STORE

Front elevation Side elevations Rear elevation

Om 0s 1 15 2 3 4 5m

e el el e

Trimetals cycle stoce In ofve & moordand graen pye costed Ninsh with 2 Ne paclecks & Minge down ramg.

o
4

Trimetals Steel Cycle Store

wawrimetslscousk



APPENDIX D — FOUNDATIONS
DETAILS & CROSS SECTION

BUILDING.
(REFER ARCH
DRAWINGS)

FROPOSED MINI FILED EAFT
FOUNDATION.

EXCAVATION NO DEEFER
THAN EXISTING TARMAC.

)\

R “‘t ik e

STING BUILDING SLAB
EXISTING SLAB/HARDCORE MOVED AND REPLACED 45
REMOVED IN BUILD ZONE. PAVING, AS CONSENT 16/01203
EXCAVATION NO DEEFER

THAN EXISTING.

SECTION DEMONSTRATES NO ADVERSE GROUND LEVEL CONDITIONS. [ I [T

NO FURTHER EXCAVATION (OTHER THAN MINI PILING A5 PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)
15 PROPOSED WITHIN THE RPZ.

EXISTING
LEVELS PLAN

00

DESIGHN

Civil & Struciural Engineers
e

= f ey
o Nascot Bomes
REFER ALSO DRAWING NHO10/PSK002A AND ARBORICULTURAL REPORT - Rear of 54-60 Clewer Hill Road

Windsor

™ Section B & Existing Level Plan

Braeia e

NHO010/PSKO03A

e
K a3

PLANNING

ALL PILES WITHIN/NEAR
ANTICIPATED ROOT FROTECTION | [ EsTovaTED RoOT
ZONE TO BE RELOCATED AS OTECTION ZONE

REQUIRED FOLLOWING ROOT
EXISTING GARAGES SURVEY
RETAINED/UNAFFECTED. | | MOVEMENT JOINT
K - ROOT POSITIONS CONFIRMED BY
MAKING GOOD £l
WORKS ON OPOSED - USE OF AIR-SPADE OR SIMILAR f—
JUNCTION. PRIOR TO FILING. |~
‘ [
{ i
/
| Il
O O O O o] N EXTENT OF SINGLE
STOREY STRUCTURAL
o H
o
ICHANGED FROM
PREVIOUS APPROVAL.
I PREVIOUS APPROVAL.
0 0o o o o Q
I o o 0

DRAWING
NHO10/PSKO03A

M

/
/

Civl & Structural Engineers
STAINLESS STEEL e g s
ANGLE FIXED TO

FACE OF SLAB WITH
CASTIN ‘ABBEY

Nascot Homes

SLOTS OR SIMILAR

Rear of 54-60 Clewer Hill Road

SOLUTION IS AS APPROVED 16/01203| Windsor

™" New Foundations - Indicative

oo e

NHO10/PSK002A

50




WINDSOR URBAN

Agenda Iltem 5

a4

=2

>

8

Planning Appeals Received £ )
27 November 2018 - 20 December 2018 = Sy

= | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on the Planning
Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the Pins reference number. If you do
not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol,

BS1 6PN

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Windsor Unparished

18/60142/REF Planning Ref.:  18/01771/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/D/18/
3215670

30 November 2018 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Refusal Appeal Type: Householder

Single storey side/rear extension to existing garage conversion to provide ancillary
accommodation

95 Dedworth Road Windsor SL4 5BB

Mr S Tattersfield c/o Agent: Mrs Fiona Jones Cameron Jones Planning 3 Elizabeth Gardens

Ascot Berkshire SL5 9BJ

Windsor Unparished

18/60143/REF 17/03425/FULL PIns Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/
18/3208265
7 January 2019

Written Representation

Planning Ref.:

3 December 2018 Comments Due:
Refusal Appeal Type:
Construction of detached dwelling with ancillary parking
Land At 6 Lodge Way Windsor

Mr Simon Graham c/o Agent: Mr John Andrews John Andrews Associates The Lodge 66
St Leonard's Road Windsor SL4 3BY

Windsor Unparished

18/60145/REF Planning Ref.:  18/01786/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/
18/3215760

3 December 2018 Comments Due: 7 January 2019

Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Construction of x5 dwellings with associated parking following demolition of the existing
dwellings

151 - 153 Vansittart Road Windsor

Ms Burns c/o Agent: Mrs Rosalind Gall Kevin Scott Consultancy Sentinel House Ancells

Business Park Harvest Crescent Fleet Hampshire GU51 2UZ

51


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Ward:
Parish:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Windsor Unparished

18/60148/NONDET Planning Ref.:  18/00753/0OUT Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/18/
3208648

7 December 2018 Comments Due: 11 January 2019
Non-determination Appeal Type: Written Representation

Outline application (access, layout and scale) for the construction of 2 x two bedroom
dwellings, 10 x two bedroom apartments and 1 x one bedroom apartment following the
demolition of 9-11 Imperial Road.

9 - 11 Imperial Road Windsor

Mr Kris Collett Castlemere Developments 19 York Road Cookham Maidenhead SL6 1SQ

Datchet Parish

18/60155/REF Planning Ref.:  18/00813/FULL Pins Ref.:

APP/T0355/W/18/
3215542

19 December 2018 Comments Due: 23 January 2019

Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Construction of a four bedroom dwelling with ramp, raised terrace, new access, associated
landscaping and parking following demolition of the existing garage and outbuildings.

Land At 114 Slough Road Datchet Slough

Mrs Diane Angell c/o Agent: Mr T Rumble Woolf Bond Planning The Mitfords Basingstoke
Road Three Mile Cross Reading RG7 1AT

52



Appeal Decision Report

27 November 2018 - 20 December 2018

Royal Borough
of Windsor &
Maidenhead

Windsor Urban

www.rbwm.gov.uk
sl

Appeal Ref.: 18/60066/REF Planning Ref.: 17/00482/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/
17/3187347
Appellant: Medina Property Development Ltd c/o Agent: Mrs Amanda Olley Summit Planning
Associates The Studio 4th Floor No. 1 St Ann Street Manchester M2 7LG
Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
Description: Construction of a residential development comprising (Building A) a three storey block

containing 7 x 1-bed, 5 x 2-bed flats, (Buildings B1 and B2) two terraces of 3 x 3-bed
dwellings, (Building C) a part three/part four storey block containing 9 x 1 bed, 7 x 2-bed
flats, (Building D) a part four/part five storey building containing 16 x 2 bed, 5 x 3-bed
flats, (Building E) a part four/part five storey building containing 4 x 1-bed, 15 x 2-bed
flats, (Block F) a four storey building containing 7 x 1-bed and 8 x 2-bed flats. Refuse and
cycle stores, new road and pavements/cycle ways with parking (surface and
underground) and amenity/play space, hard and soft landscaping, ancillary works
following demolition of existing commercial buildings.

Location: Street Record Shirley Avenue Windsor
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 6 December 2018
Main Issue: The Inspector found in favour of the appellants on the issues of employment land supply

and flooding. However the Inspector considered that the scheme would, in all probability,
remove a community facility with no assurance that it could or would be replaced nearby,
contrary to development plan policy CF1 and the revised NPPF. They also considered
that the scheme would harm the character and appearance of the area because of the
loss, or reduction of the canopy, of trees and result in pressure for the future removal of
others contrary to policies DG1 and N6 and the objectives of the NPPF. As such, the
Inspector dismissed the scheme.

53



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf
	Insert from: "APRIL 2017_Govt access and declarations of interest.pdf"
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf


	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	All_planning_applications

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

